
 

 

 
McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  

Commissioners Regular Session  
Wednesday Morning, March 6, 2024 | 10:00 am 

Government Complex Meeting Room 
 
 
WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER        Chairman Newton 
 
INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
APPROVALS 
    Agenda  Current 
          Minutes  Regular Meeting Tuesday, February 20, 2024  
   Work Session   Monday, March 4, 2024  
    
INFORMATION & ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
§ ACCG Legislative Breakfast | Atlanta, Georgia | Thursday, March 7, 2024 | 7:30 am – 5 pm  
§ 2024 ACCG Annual Conference | Savannah, Georgia | April 25-28, 2024 

 
APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT None 
 
OLD BUSINESS    None  
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consideration to Approve Proclamation of March 12th as Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta 
Sorority, Incorporated Charter Day.  

2. Consideration to Approve Voting Delegate for Consideration of Three Statewide Georgia Opioid 
Settlement Advisory Commission Members (GOSAC) and Regional Advisory Council (RAC) Members.  

3. Consideration of Naming a portion of West Bypass in memory of Special Agent Bob Kirk.  
4. Consideration to Approve Wrightsboro Road Sewer Improvements-Addendum 3.  
5. Consideration to Approve the GEMA Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement. 
6. Consideration to Approve the GAP Group, Inc. & WinGAP User Agreement Defining the Relationship, 

Responsibilities, and Obligations of GAP Group, Inc. the Service Provider, and McDuffie County, the User.  
7. Consideration to Approve the Contract Agreement between the McDuffie County Board of Commissioners 

and the UGA Board of Regents on behalf of the UGA Cooperative Extension.  
8. Consideration to Approve Software for Planning and Zoning Department: Cloudpermit: Building 

Permitting and Licensing Software. 
9. Consideration to Approve One (1) E-ONE HR 100’ Aerial with 1500 GPM Hale Pump, 500 Gallon Booster 

Tank on 2025 Model.  
10. Consideration to Approve the February 2024 ACO Report.  
11. Consideration to Approve Trash Amnesty Day, March 23rd or 30th  
12. Consideration to Approve the Amended McDuffie County EMS Schedule of Fees  

 
ADJOURNMENT 



 

 

 
MCDUFFIE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

Regular Session Meeting MINUTES  
Tuesday Evening, February 20, 2024 | 6:30 pm  

Government Center Meeting Room 
 

 

1 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  
Charlie G Newton, Chairman 
Fred Favors, Commissioner  
Gloria Thompson, Commissioner  
Sammie Wilson, Vice-Chair  
William “Bill” Jopling, Commissioner  
 
MEDIA: McDuffie Progress  
Members of the Public  

COUNTY REPRESENTATION:  
David Crawley, County Manager 

Carrie Edwards, County Clerk  
Pam Workman, Finance Director  

Stacey Thomas, Tax Commissioner  
Jason Smith, Community Development Director 

Stephen Sewell, Fire Chief  
Matthew Reid, Campground Manager  

Catherine Bohler, Animals Services Facilities Manager  
Will Reid, Animal Services Shelter Technician  

Robert Spurlin, IT Director   
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Chairman Newton opened the public hearing at 6:30 pm.   
 
 Consideration to Approve Variances for Development at 1860 Dallas Drive. 
 Consideration to Approve to Rezone 0.39 acres at 791 Augusta Road. 
 Consideration to Approve a Variance for Accessory Structures at 1280 Washington Road. 

 
Chairman Newton turned it over to Community Development Director, Jason Smith. 

 
WELCOME & CALL TO ORDER        Chairman Newton 
 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
PUBLIC INPUT  
 
Mr. Butch Blount requested information on the Wrigthsboro Road permitting of single-wide mobile homes.  
 
APPROVALS 
    Agenda  Current 
          Minutes  Regular Meeting Monday, February 5, 2024   
   Executive Session  Monday, February 5, 2024  
 
Chairman Newton asked if there were any corrections to the current agenda or minutes.  
 
With no corrections, Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the current agenda. The motion was 
seconded by Vice Chair Wilson. The motion carried unanimously.  
 
With no corrections to Regular and Executive Session Minutes, Commissioner Jopling made the motion to approve 
the minutes. The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Wilson. The motion carried unanimously.  
 



 

 

 
MCDUFFIE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

Regular Session Meeting MINUTES  
Tuesday Evening, February 20, 2024 | 6:30 pm  

Government Center Meeting Room 
 

 

2 
 

INFORMATION & ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 2024 Lifelong Learning Academy Spring Session | Tifton, Georgia | February 29-March 1, 2024  
 ACCG Legislative Breakfast | Atlanta, Georgia | Thursday, March 7, 2024 | 7:30 am – 11 am 
 2024 ACCG Annual Conference | Savannah, Georgia | April 25-28, 2024 

 
APPOINTMENT/REAPPOINTMENT None 
 
OLD BUSINESS    None  
  
NEW BUSINESS 
 
1. Consideration to Approve Variances for Hotel Development at 1860 Dallas Drive. 

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion for variance requests, including, setbacks, buffers, installation of 
privacy fence, and exterior requirements. Commissioner Jopling made the motion to approve the agenda item. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Thompson. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
2. Consideration to Approve to Rezone 0.39 acres at 791 Augusta Road. 

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the 
rezoning. The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Wilson. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
3. Consideration to Approve a Variance for Accessory Structures at 1280 Washington Road. 

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Jopling made the motion to approve the 
agenda item. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Thompson. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
4. Consideration to Surplus Four Vehicles from the Sheriff’s Department and place them on GovDeals. 

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Vice Chair Wilson made the motion to approve the agenda 
item. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Favors. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
5. Consideration to Surplus, Decommission and Recycle Server 512 and 562 from Sheriff’s Department.  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Jopling made the motion to approve the 
agenda item. The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Wilson. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
6. Consideration to Approve Concession Building: Access Control and Network Infrastructure.  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the 
agenda item. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Favors. The motion carried unanimously. 



 

 

 
MCDUFFIE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

Regular Session Meeting MINUTES  
Tuesday Evening, February 20, 2024 | 6:30 pm  

Government Center Meeting Room 
 

 

3 
 

 
7. Consideration to Approve Fortinet Networking Switch and Access Points for 20 county-wide sites.  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the 
agenda item. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Jopling. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
8. Consideration to Approve NAACP 4th Annual Juneteenth and Father’s Day Celebration.  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Vice Chair Wilson made the motion to approve the agenda 
item. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Favors. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
9. Consideration to Approve the January ACO Report.  

 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the 
agenda item. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Jopling. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
10. Monthly Budget Report  

 
County Manager Crawley provided the Monthly Budget Report. 
 
11. Monthly Financial Report  

 
Pam Workman, Finance Director, provided the Monthly Financial Report. 
 

12. Consideration of Cranston Engineering Modification of Fee Proposal from $299K to $270K. 
 
Chairman Newton opened the floor for a motion. Commissioner Thompson made the motion to approve the 
agenda item. The motion was seconded by Vice Chair Wilson. The motion carried unanimously 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:13 pm.  
 

MCDUFFIE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 

ATTEST:   
Charles G. Newton, IV, Chairman Carrie R Edwards, County Clerk 

 



 

 

 
McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  

Commissioners Work Session 
MINUTES   

Monday Evening, March 4, 2024 | 6:30 pm 
Government Complex Meeting Room 

 

1 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: COUNTY REPRESENTATION: 
Charlie Newton, Chairman David Crawley, County Manager 
Sammie Wilson, Vice Chairman Carrie Edwards, County Clerk  
Gloria Thompson, Commissioner  Pam Workman, Finance Director 
Wm. “Bill” M. Jopling, Commissioner Jason Smith, Community Development Director 
 Stephen Sewell, Chief Fire/EMS 
 
Media: McDuffie Progress 

COMMISSIONERS’ WORK SESSION 
 

All agenda items are for discussion only. No action was taken during the meeting. 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS  
 

1. Consideration to Approve Proclamation of March 12th as Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma 
Theta Sorority, Incorporated Charter Day. 

 
 County Clerk, Carrie Edwards provided information on the proclamation request.   
 

This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 
  

2. Consideration to Approve Voting Delegate for Consideration of Three Statewide Georgia Opioid 
Settlement Advisory Commission Members (GOSAC) and Regional Advisory Council (RAC) Members.  

 
 It was discussed that Vice Chair Wilson will represent the county.  

 
This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 

 
3. Consideration of Naming a portion of West Bypass in memory of Special Agent Bob Kirk.  

 
 County Manager Crawley provided information for the approval Naming a portion of the West Bypass in 
 memory if Special Agent Bob Kirk.   
  
 This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 
 

4. Consideration to Approve Wrightsboro Road Sewer Improvements-Addendum 3.  
 
 County Manager Crawley provided information for the approval of Addendum 3.  
  
 This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 
 

5. Consideration to Approve the GEMA Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement. 



 

 

 
McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  

Commissioners Work Session 
MINUTES   

Monday Evening, March 4, 2024 | 6:30 pm 
Government Complex Meeting Room 

 

2 
 

 
 Chief Sewell provided information for the approval of the agreement.   
  
 This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 

 
6. Consideration to Approve the GAP Group, Inc. & WinGAP User Agreement Defining the Relationship, 

Responsibilities, and Obligations of GAP Group, Inc. the Service Provider, and McDuffie County, the 
User.  
 

 County Manager Crawley provided information for the approval Agreement.  
  
 This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 
 

7. Consideration to Approve the Contract Agreement between the McDuffie County Board of 
Commissioners and the UGA Board of Regents on behalf of the UGA Cooperative Extension.  

 
 County Clerk, Carrie Edwards provided information for the approval Amended Contract.   
  
 This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 
 

8. Consideration to Approve Software for Planning and Zoning Department: Cloudpermit: Building 
Permitting and Licensing Software. 

 
 Community Development Director, Jason Smith provided information for the approval of CloudPermit.    
  
 This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 
 

9. Consideration to Approve One (1) E-ONE HR 100’ Aerial with 1500 GPM Hale Pump, 500 Gallon Booster 
Tank on 2025 Model.  

  
 Chief Sewell provided information for the approval of a new Aerial truck utilizing SPLOST.  
  
 This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 
 

10. Consideration to Approve the February 2024 ACO Report.  
 
 This item will be added to the next meeting agenda.  
 

11. Consideration to Approve Trash Amnesty Day, March 23rd or 30th.  
 
 This item will be added to the next meeting agenda 

 
12. Consideration to Approve the Amended McDuffie County EMS Schedule of Fees.  

https://cloudpermit.com/
https://cloudpermit.com/


 

 

 
McDuffie County Board of Commissioners  

Commissioners Work Session 
MINUTES   

Monday Evening, March 4, 2024 | 6:30 pm 
Government Complex Meeting Room 

 

3 
 

 
 Chief Sewell provided information for the approval of a modified EMS schedule of fees.   
  
 This item will be added to the next meeting agenda. 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

MCDUFFIE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 

ATTEST:   
Charles G. Newton, IV, Chairman Carrie R Edwards, County Clerk 

 



 

CHARTER DAY PROCLAMATION 
Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority 

 
WHEREAS, Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated was founded in 1913 by 22 visionary collegiate women at Howard 
University in Washington, DC, who sought to use their collec�ve strength to promote academic excellence and perform 
mul�faceted community service; and 
 
WHEREAS, Delta Sigma Theta Sorority’s commitment to change and beterment was demonstrated during their par�cipa�on in 
the Women’s Suffrage March held on March 3, 1913, for equal and vo�ng rights for women as the only African-American 
women’s organiza�on; and 
 
WHEREAS, incorporated in 1930, Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated, is known throughout the State of Georgia, the City 
of Thomson, na�onally and interna�onally as a private, not-for-profit organiza�on whose purpose is to aid and support through 
established programs in local communi�es throughout the world.  The sorority currently has 1,000 collegiate ad alumnae 
chapters located in the United States, Canada, Japan (Tokyo and Okinawa), Germany, the Virgin Islands, Bermuda, Liberia, 
Bermuda, the Bahamas, Jamaica, West Africa, Southern Africa, United Arab Emirates and the Republic of Korea. 
 
WHEREAS, Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated provides community service under its Five Point Programma�c Thrust: 
Economic Development, Educa�onal Development, Interna�onal Awareness and Involvement, Physical and Mental Health, and 
Poli�cal Awareness and Involvement; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 12, 1994, a group of visionary and dedicated women came together to establish the Thomson Alumnae 
Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated, commited to the same vision and purpose as the 22 founders – 
sisterhood, scholarship, and service. 
 
WHEREAS, for 29 years the Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated, was the only ac�ve chapter 
of the Pan-Hellenic Council in McDuffie County. 
 
WHEREAS, For the past 30 years Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated, has impacted this 
community and surrounding communi�es, embodying the principles of sisterhood, empowerment, and community 
engagement; and 
 

WHEREAS, Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated, has made significant contribu�ons to the 
community through its various service ini�a�ves, inspiring posi�ve change and making a las�ng impact. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Charles Newton, IV, Chairman of the Board of Commissioners, do hereby proclaim March 12th, as 
Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated Charter Day.  On this day, we celebrate the legacy and 
achievements of the Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated, acknowledging its profound 
influence on the lives of its members and our community.  Let us honor this special day and commend the Thomson Alumnae 
Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated, for its ongoing commitment to sisterhood, scholarship, and service. 

So, proclaimed this 6th day of March 2024.  
    

     ____________________________________________ 
           Charlie G. Newton, Chairman 

              McDuffie County Board of Commissioners 

 

           Atest: _______________________________________  
                  Carrie R Edwards, McDuffie County Clerk  

 



 
 
TO: Participating Local Governments to Georgia’s Opioid Distributor Settlement, including Cities, 

Counties, Sheriffs, Community Service Boards, Hospitals and Hospital Authorities, Etc. 
 
FROM:  Dave Wills, ACCG Executive Director & Larry Hanson, GMA Executive Director 
 
DATE:  February 15, 2024 
 
SUBJECT: Identification of Voting Delegate for Consideration of Three Statewide Georgia Opioid 

Settlement Advisory Commission Members (GOSAC) and Regional Advisory Council (RAC) 
Members  

 
The Memorandum of Understanding between the State of Georgia and Participating Local Governments as 
part of Georgia’s participation in the national Opioid Distributor and Janssen Settlements requires the 
creation of the Georgia Opioid Settlement Advisory Commission (GOSAC) and Regional Advisory Councils 
(RACs) to assess grant applications and recommend funding for the regional portion of the opioid settlement 
funds.  As part of the settlement, Participating Local Governments are required to vote on three GOSAC 
representatives and the RAC members for their respective regions. 
 
Each Participating Local Government will receive one vote as part of this process.  This vote will be held at 
regional, in-person meetings (see the attached list), and the voting delegate must be present to cast his or her 
vote on behalf of the Participating Local Government.  The slate will be approved if the majority of the voting 
delegates present vote in favor of it.  Additional information on the regional meetings will be emailed to the 
voting delegates. 
 
Please complete and return this form no later than March 15, 2024 to ACCG Administration & Operations 
Director Beth Brown at bbrown@accg.org as a scanned email attachment or photo.  If you choose to send it 
as a photo, please make sure the information provided below is clear and easy to read.  Your prompt attention 
to this matter is greatly appreciated.   
 

 
PARTICIPATING LOCAL GOVERNMENT VOTING DELEGATE FOR GOSAC AND RAC SLATE CONSIDERATION 

 
__________________________________   __________________________________ 
Name       Title 
 
__________________________________   __________________________________ 
Participating Local Government    Email 
 
__________________________________ 
Date 
 
 

 
For questions or additional information, please contact Beth Brown at bbrown@accg.org or 770-262-5092. 

mailto:bbrown@accg.org


 
 
 

REGIONAL MEETINGS 
 
 
Region 1 
March 21 @ 10 a.m.  
Dawson County Government Center/Courthouse 
BOC Assembly Room (2nd Floor) 
25 Justice Way 
Dawsonville, GA  30534 
 
Region 2 
March 25 @ 2 p.m. 
Greene County Administration Building 
1034 Silver Drive 
Greensboro, GA  30642 
 
Region 3 
March 20 @ 10 a.m. 
Rockdale County CE Steele Community Center 
1040 Oakland Avenue 
Conyers, GA  30012 
 
Region 4 
March 26 @ 2 p.m. 
Colquitt County Administration Building 
101 East Central Avenue 
Moultrie, GA  31678 
 
Region 5 
March 26 @ 10 a.m. 
Appling County Courthouse Annex  
BOC Meeting Room (2nd Floor) 
69 Tippins Street 
Baxley, GA  31513 
 
Region 6 
March 27 @ 10 a.m. 
Harris County Library 
7511 SR 116 
Hamilton, GA  31811 
 





 Addendum No. Three (3) 

 
 ADDENDUM   

  

 

Date:  October 27, 2023       Engineer's Project No.:  E19-330 

 

Project:  Wrightsboro Road Sewer Improvements  

 

CLIENT:  McDuffie County  

 

Contract Dated:  October 22, 2019  

  

 

As Engineer for this Project, we shall perform the following changes to the above referenced project:   

 

Provide periodic on-site construction observation of the work.  Estimate 8 to 12 hours weekly at rate of 

$115/hour when contractor is on-site working. 

  

 

This change results in the following adjustment of Contract Price and Contract Time:  

 

Net Increase Resulting from this Change to be:   $ 30,000 (estimate only)  

  

Change in Contract Time Resulting from this Addendum: N/A   

  

 

The above changes are Accepted:   McDuffie County, Georgia  

 

 

Date:      BY:    

 Charles G. Newton, IV, Chairman 

   

 

PRECISION PLANNING, INC. acknowledges the above described changes in scope of services for the 

referenced project. 

 

 

Date:      BY:   

 William L. Crowder, P.E. 
  

 

 



STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 
 

County/Municipality:    
 
 
The State of Georgia is vulnerable to a wide range of natural and man-made disasters and emergencies. 
The Georgia Emergency Management Act, as amended (The Act) gives the local governments of the 
State the authority to make agreements for mutual aid assistance in emergencies. Pre-existing 
agreements for mutual aid assistance in emergencies help to ensure the timely provision of mutual aid 
assistance and the reimbursement of costs incurred by those parties who render such assistance. 

 
This mutual aid agreement is entered pursuant to authorities contained in Articles I through III, 
Chapter 3, Title 38, Official Code of Georgia Annotated. 

 
ARTICLE I 

STATEMENT OF AGREEMENT, DEFINITIONS AND AUTHORITIES 
 

This Agreement is made and entered into between the participating political subdivisions, which 
approve and execute this Agreement, hereinafter called "Participating Parties" and the Georgia 
Emergency Management and Homeland Security Agency (GEMA/HS). For purposes of this 
Agreement, the following terms and expressions shall apply: 

 
(1) "Agreement" means this agreement, generally referred to as the "Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement" 
(SWMAA). 

 
(2) "Assistance" includes personnel, equipment, facilities, services, supplies and other resources 
furnished to a Requesting Party pursuant to this Agreement during an emergency or disaster. 

 
(3) "Assisting Party" means a party that provides assistance pursuant to this Agreement during an 
emergency or disaster. 

 
(4) "Authorized Representative" means a Participating Party's elected or appointed official or 
employee who has been authorized in writing by that party to request, to offer, or otherwise to provide 
mutual aid assistance. 

 
(5) "Participating Party" means a county or municipality of the State of Georgia that has become party 
to this Agreement by its approval and execution of this agreement. 

 
(6) “Participating Parties” means the combination of counties and municipalities that have become 
parties to this Agreement by their approval and execution of this Agreement. 

 
(7) "Requesting Party" means a party that requests assistance pursuant to this Agreement during an 
emergency or disaster. 

 
Any term or expression not defined in this Agreement shall have the meaning specified in the Georgia 
Emergency Management Act, as amended (the Act) and rules promulgated thereunder, unless used in a 
context that clearly suggests a different meaning. 

 
 
 
 

Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement- 2024 
Page 1 of 8 



Page 2 of 8 
Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement- 2024 

 

ARTICLE II 
GENERAL PURPOSE 

 

The purpose of this Agreement is to: 
 

1. Provide the framework to support mutual assistance in managing an emergency or disaster 
occurring within any political subdivision that is a Participating Party, whether arising from 
natural disaster, technological hazard, human caused disaster, civil emergency, community 
disorders, insurgency, enemy attack, acts of terrorism, other significant events or homeland 
security activity; and 

 
2. Identify those persons who are authorized to act on behalf of the Participating Party signing this 

Agreement as their Authorized Representative(s) concerning the provision of mutual aid 
resources and requests for mutual aid resources related to any mutual aid assistance sought 
from another Participating Party, or from or through the State of Georgia. Appendix A of this 
Agreement shall contain the name(s) of the Participating Party’s Authorized Representative for 
purposes of this Agreement. Appendix A can be amended by the authorizing Participating Party 
as needed with no effect on the entire Agreement. All such amendments to Appendix A shall be 
done in writing and the Participating Party shall notify GEMA/HS and all other Participating 
Parties of such amendment within thirty (30) days. 

 
ARTICLE III 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 
 

The prompt, full and effective utilization of resources of the Participating Parties, including any 
resources on hand or available from the State or Federal Government or any other source, that are 
essential to the safety, care and welfare of the people shall be the underlying principle on which all 
articles of this Agreement shall be understood. 

 
In the event of a conflict between any provision of this Agreement and any existing intrastate mutual 
aid agreement affecting a Participating Party, the provisions of this Agreement shall be controlling. 

 
On behalf of the governing authority of each political subdivision of this State participating in the 
Agreement, the director of emergency management of such political subdivision will be responsible for 
formulation of the appropriate mutual aid plans and procedures necessary to implement this 
Agreement. 

 
ARTICLE IV 

PARTICIPATING PARTY RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

(a) It shall be the responsibility of each Participating Party to formulate procedures and programs for 
intergovernmental cooperation in the performance of the responsibilities listed in this Article. In 
formulating such plans, and in carrying them out, each Participating Party, insofar as practical, shall: 

 
(1) Protect and assure uninterrupted delivery of services, medicines, water, food, energy and fuel, 
search and rescue, and critical lifeline equipment, services, and resources, both human and 
material; and 



Page 3 of 8 
Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement- 2024 

 

 

(2) Inventory and set procedures for the loan and delivery of human and material resources, 
together with procedures for reimbursement. 

 
(b) Whenever a Participating Party requires mutual aid assistance from another Participating Party 
and/or the State of Georgia, the Requesting Party may request assistance by: 

 
(1) Contacting the Participating Party who is the owner/operator/employer of the supplies, 
equipment and/or personnel being sought for mutual aid assistance (the Assisting Party); or 

 
(2) Contacting GEMA/HS to serve as the facilitator of such request for those resources being 

sought for mutual aid that are owned/operated/employed by Participating Parties (where such 
Participating Parties have submitted a record of those resources to GEMA/HS for such use); and/or, 
when such resources being sought for mutual aid are owned/operated/employed directly by the State of 
Georgia. 

 
The provisions of this Agreement shall only apply to requests for assistance made by an Authorized 
Representative. Requests may be verbal or in writing. If verbal, the request must be confirmed in 
writing within 30 days of the verbal request. Requests shall provide the following information: 

 
(1) A description of the emergency service function for which assistance is needed, such as but not 
limited to fire services, law enforcement, emergency medical, transportation, communications, 
public works and engineering, building inspection, planning and information assistance, mass care, 
resource support, health and medical services, damage assessment, volunteer and donated goods 
and search and rescue; and 

 
(2) The amount and type of personnel, equipment, materials and supplies needed, and a reasonable 
estimate of the length of time each will be needed; and 

 
(3) The specific place and time for staging of the Assisting Party's response and a point of contact 
at that location. 

 
The Assisting Party will (a) maintain daily personnel time records, material records and a log of 
equipment hours (or miles, if appropriate) and (b) report work progress to the Requesting Party at 
mutually agreed upon intervals. 

 
ARTICLE V 

LIMITATIONS 
 

Any Participating Party requested to render mutual aid shall take such action as is necessary to provide 
and make available the resources covered by this Agreement in accordance with the terms hereof; 
provided that it is understood that the Participating Party who is asked to render aid may withhold 
resources to the extent necessary to meet the current or anticipated needs of the Participating Party’s 
own political subdivision to remain in compliance with such Participating Party’s policy, rule or law. 

 
The Assisting Party’s mutual aid resources will continue under the command and control of their own 



Page 4 of 8 
Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement- 2024 

 

supervisors, but the organizational units will be under the operational control of the emergency 
services authorities of the Requesting Party unless the Assisting Party approves an alternative. 

 
In the event the Governor should declare a State of Emergency, any and all provisions of this 
Agreement which may conflict with the declared State of Emergency shall be superseded by the terms 
and conditions contained within the State of Emergency. 

 
ARTICLE VI 

LIABILITY AND IMMUNITY 
 

(a) In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 38-3-35(a), no political subdivision of the state, nor the agents or 
representatives of the state or any political subdivision thereof, shall be liable for personal injury or 
property damage sustained by any person appointed or acting as a volunteer emergency management 
worker or member of any agency engaged in emergency management activity. The foregoing shall not 
affect the right of any person to receive benefits or compensation to which he might otherwise be 
entitled under Chapter 9 of Title 34, Code Section 38-3-30, any pension law, or any act of Congress. 

 
(b) In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 38-3-35(b), no political subdivision of the state nor, except in cases 
of willful misconduct, gross negligence, or bad faith, the employees, agents, or representatives of the 
state or any political subdivision thereof, nor any volunteer or auxiliary emergency management 
worker or member of any agency engaged in any emergency management activity complying with or 
reasonably attempting to comply with Articles 1 through 3, Chapter 3, Title 38, Official Code of 
Georgia Annotated; or any order, rule, or regulation promulgated pursuant to Articles 1 through 3 of 
title, or pursuant to any ordinance relating to precautionary measures enacted by any political 
provisions of Articles 1 through 3 of said chapter and title, or pursuant to any ordinance relating to 
precautionary measures enacted by any political subdivision of the state shall be liable for the death of 
or the injury to person or for damage to property as a result of any such activity. 

 
(c) It is the express intent of the parties that the immunities specified in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 
38-3-35 shall apply in addition to any other immunity provided by statute or case law. 

 
ARTICLE VII 

RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES 
 

In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 38-3-30(a), whenever the employees of any Assisting Party or political 
subdivision are rendering outside aid pursuant to this agreement and the authority contained in Code 
Section 38-3-27, the employees shall have the same powers, duties, rights, privileges and immunities 
as if they were performing their duties in the political subdivisions in which they are normally 
employed. 

 
ARTICLE VIII 

REIMBURSEMENT 
 

In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 38-3-30(b), The Requesting Party shall be liable for any loss of or 
damage to equipment used or placed within the jurisdiction of the Requesting Party and shall pay any 
expense incurred in the operation and maintenance thereof. No claim for the loss, damage or expense 
shall be allowed unless, within 60 days after the same is sustained or incurred, an itemized notice of 



Page 5 of 8 
Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement- 2024 

 

the claim under oath is served by mail or otherwise upon the designated fiscal officer of the Requesting 
Party. Appendix B of this Agreement shall contain the name(s) of the Participating Party’s designated 
fiscal officer for purposes of this Agreement. Appendix B can be amended by the authorizing 
Participating Party as needed with no effect on the entire Agreement. Appendix B can be amended by 
the authorizing Participating Party as needed with no effect on the entire Agreement. All such 
amendments to Appendix B shall be done in writing and the Participating Party shall notify GEMA/HS 
and all other Participating Parties of such amendment within thirty (30) days. 

 
The Requesting Party shall also pay and reimburse the Assisting Party for the compensation paid to 
employees furnished by the Assisting Party during the time of the rendition of the aid, as well as the 
actual travel and per diem expenses of such employees while they are rendering the aid. The 
reimbursement shall include any amounts paid or due for compensation due to personal injury or death 
while the employees are engaged in rendering the aid. The term "employee," as used herein, shall 
mean, and this provision shall apply with equal effect to, paid, volunteer and auxiliary employees and 
emergency management workers.   
 
Expenses to be reimbursed by the Requesting Party shall include the following: 

 
(1) Labor costs, which shall include all usual wages, salaries, compensation for hours worked, 
mobilization and demobilization, the Assisting Party's portion of payroll taxes (as employer), 
insurance, accrued paid leave and other fringe benefits, but not those amounts paid or due as a 
benefit to the Assisting Parties personnel under the terms of the Georgia Workers Compensation 
Act; and 

 
(2) Equipment costs, which shall include the fair rental value, the cost of fuel and other consumable 
supplies, service and repairs. If the equipment is damaged while in use under this Agreement and 
the Assisting Party receives payment for such damage under any contract for insurance, the 
Requesting Party may deduct such payment from any item or items invoiced; and 

 
(3) Material costs, which shall include the total reasonable cost for the use and consumption of any 
and all consumable supplies delivered by the Assisting Party for the benefit of the Requesting 
Party; and 

 
(4) Meals, lodging and other related expenses, which shall include charges for meals, lodging and 
other expenses relating to the provision of assistance pursuant to this Agreement shall be the actual 
and reasonable costs incurred by the Assisting Party. 

 
The Assisting Party shall maintain records and submit invoices within 60 days for reimbursement as 
specified hereinabove and the Requesting Party shall pay the invoice no later than 30 days following 
the invoice date. 

ARTICLE IX 
IMPLEMENTATION 

 

This Agreement shall become operative immediately upon its approval and execution by GEMA/HS 
and any two political subdivisions of this State; thereafter, this Agreement shall become effective as to 
any other political subdivision of this State upon its approval and execution by such political 
subdivision. 



Page 6 of 8 
Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement- 2024 

 

Any Participating Party may withdraw from this Agreement by mailing notice of withdrawal, approved 
by the governing authority of such political subdivision, but no such withdrawal shall take effect until 
30 days after the governing authority of the withdrawing political subdivision has given notice in 
writing of such withdrawal to the governing authorities of all other Participating Parties. Such action 
shall not relieve the withdrawing political subdivision from obligations assumed hereunder prior to the 
effective date of withdrawal. 

 
Copies of this Agreement shall, at the time of their approval, be deposited with each of the respective 
Participating Parties and with GEMA/HS. 

 
ARTICLE X 

TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 

This Agreement, once executed, is valid until March 1, 2028. Agreement of the Participating Parties to 
extend the term of this agreement at any time during the last year of its original term or the last year of 
any subsequent four-year term shall extend the term of this agreement for four years. Each four-year 
extension shall constitute a separate agreement. 

 
ARTICLE XI 
VALIDITY 

 

If any provision of this Agreement is declared unconstitutional, or the applicability thereof to any 
person or circumstances is held invalid, the constitutionality of the remainder of this Agreement and 
the applicability thereof to other persons and circumstances shall not be affected thereby. 

 
 
Agreed: 

 
 
       Charles Newton, IV  
 

  

Chief Executive Officer - Signature Chief Executive Officer – Print Name 
 
 
County/Municipality: McDuffie County 

 
 
Date: / /   

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

GEMA/HS Director – Signature GEMA/HS Director – Print Name 
 
 
 
Date: / /   



Chief Executive Officer – Print Name 
Page 7 of 8 

Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement- 2024 

 

APPENDIX A 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

 

The below named individual(s), in addition to the chief executive officer, is/are the “Authorized

Representative(s)” for __________________________(county/municipality), and are authorized

to request, offer, or otherwise provide and coordinate mutual aid assistance on behalf of the above- 

named county/municipality: 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Print Name Job Title/Position 
 
 
 
 

 

Signature of Above Individual 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Print Name Job Title/Position 
 
 
 
 

 

Signature of Above Individual 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Print Name Job Title/Position 
 
 
 
 

 

Signature of Above Individual 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Chief Executive Officer - Signature 
Date: / /   



Chief Executive Officer – Print Name 
Page 8 of 8 

Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement- 2024 

 

APPENDIX B 
DESIGNATED FISCAL OFFICER(S) 

 

The below named individual(s) is/are the “designated fiscal officer(s)” for___________________ 
 

(county/municipality) for the purpose of reimbursement sought for mutual aid: 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Print Name Job Title/Position 
 
 
 
 

 

Signature of Above Individual 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Print Name Job Title/Position 
 
 
 
 

 

Signature of Above Individual 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Print Name Job Title/Position 
 
 
 
 

 

Signature of Above Individual 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Chief Executive Officer - Signature 
Date: / /   



jgreen
Typewriter
March  1st 

jgreen
Typewriter
24

jgreen
Typewriter
McDuffie 











Staff Report 

RE: McDuffie County Planning and Zoning Software 

Meeting: McDuffie County Board of Commissioners, February 20, 2024 

From: Jason B. Smith 

 

Issue: Thomson-McDuffie County Planning and Zoning is considering software alternatives to digitize 
many of the department’s functions. 

Background: McDuffie County’s Planning and Zoning Department has had various conversations over 
the years about the need for software to help comprehensively manage the various requests fielded by 
staff – ranging from rezoning requests to inspection reports to business and alcohol licenses. With the 
number of planned new homes on the horizon, as well as expected increased development and the 
need to clearly document fees related to the department’s various services, staff began intensively 
researching software providers in August. The software would greatly reduce the dependence on the 
paper-based system currently in place. 

Evaluation Process: Staff contacted eight providers selected by various means, including Google 
searches, random email solicitation, providers of software for other functions, and recommendations 
from other communities. Four companies were selected for demonstrations to inspections, zoning, 
licensing and code enforcement staff. Each company provides a public-facing module, a staff-access-only 
dashboard and full implementation services. Vendors ranged from $461,000 to $50,000 for a three-year 
timeframe, which may or may not include plan review software. 

Facts & Findings: Following the presentations, staff members met to discuss the companies and 
overwhelmingly supported the service provided by Cloudpermit. In addition, an outside reviewer 
evaluated the public-facing side of the software and enthusiastically recommended approval.  

Cloudpermit’s proposal is as follows: 

· Set-up fee: $6,000 
· Annual fee: $15,000 (first year), $17,000 (subsequent years) 
· Additional:  $4,500/year – DigEPlan plan review software 
· Total expected three-year investment: $68,500 
· Timeframe:  8-12 weeks of implementation  

Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of Cloudpermit as the provider for Planning and Zoning 
software at three-year cost of $68,500, pending final revision and approval of a contract with the 
company. 

Alternatives:  

1) The Commission approves the staff recommendation and provides direction to move forward.  
2) The Commission does not approve staff recommendations and provides direction to move 

forward.  
















































































	BOC Regular Session Agenda March 06, 2024
	BOC Meeting Minutes February 20, 2024
	BOC WS Minutes 03.06.2024
	Proclamation Thomson Alumnae Chapter of Delta Sigma Theta Sorority  March 12th
	ACCG GOSAC RAC Voting Delegate Form
	GBI West Bypass Name Memory of SA Bob Kirk 03.04.2024
	Wrightsboro Road Sewer Addendum III 10.27.23
	Fire & EMS Statewide Mutual Aid Agreement March 04, 2024
	Tax Assessor GAP Group User Agreement 03.06.2024
	UGA Cooperative Extension 07.01.2023-07.01.2024
	Planning and Zoning Software Staff Report BOC 03.06.2024
	E-One HR 100' Aerial
	Tax Commissioner Feb 2024 ACO Report
	Ambulance Service Fee Changes 03.04.2024



